

MEMBERS OF ODIHAM PARISH COUNCIL ARE SUMMONED TO ATTEND THE MEETING OF ODIHAM PARISH COUNCIL TO BE HELD IN THE LIBRARY ROOM, THE BRIDEWELL, THE BURY, ODIHAM, RG29 1NB ON TUESDAY 21st FEBRUARY 2023 COMMENCING AT 7.30pm

15th February 2023

Andrea Mann, Clerk

Members of the public are welcome to attend in person or watch online: Join Zoom Meeting

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83384959076?pwd=WmIwY01RMnNKSWFqMGFUblkvVXIPQT09 Meeting ID: 833 8495 9076 Passcode: 365918

- 229/22 To receive apologies for absence
- 230/22 To receive declarations of interests and requests for dispensation relating to any item on the agenda
- 231/22 Approval of Minutes

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 17th January 2023 (203-229/22).

- 232/22 Chair's Announcements
- 233/22 Public Session

An opportunity for residents to raise questions and issues within the Parish in accordance with Standing Orders. Please view details at <u>https://odihamparishcouncil.gov.uk/council/policies-and-publications</u> or contact the Parish Office for further advice.

Councillor Reports

- 234/22 Meeting reports from Councillors To RECEIVE any verbal reports from Councillors on their attendance at outside meetings.
- 235/22 Reports from other Councils To RECEIVE any verbal reports from Hart District Councillors and the Hampshire County Councillor representing Odiham.

General

- 236/22 To consider Matters Arising from the Minutes not elsewhere on the agenda (page 5)
- **237/22** Hampshire Association of Local Councils (HALC) EGM (page 6) To agree OPC's representative who will attend HALC's extraordinary general meeting on 23rd February at 6pm and cast OPC's vote on proposed new Articles of Association.



238/22 Grant funding to InOdiham

Following OPC's allocation of 2023/24 budget below, to agree whether the total grant awarded also includes spend from the £800 earmarked reserve for floral displays. Previously agreed: Bands in The Bury £1,000, Flavourfest £1,000 and Extravaganza £2,500

- **239/22** The Greening Campaign Phase 2 thermal imaging cameras (page 7) To receive a verbal report from the Chair on the next stage of The Greening Campaign Phase 2 which includes free thermal imaging of properties in the parish.
- **240/22** Business Continuity Plan (pages 8-12) To review and accept OPC's Business Continuity Plan.

241/22 Annual meeting calendar (pages 13-14)

To consider the proposed meeting calendar from May 2023 to May 2024.

- 242/22 Annual review of Standing Orders (pages 15-34) To carry out the annual review of Standing Orders based on the NALC model standing orders 2018, as required for the annual audit. No revisions are proposed.
- 243/22 Annual review of OPC's Asset Register (pages 35-37) To review and accept OPC's revised Asset Register, as required for the annual external audit.
- **244/22** Office printer contract (page 38) To consider the proposed new contract from Ricoh to replace the current office printer contract which expires February 2023.
- 245/22 OPC and Bridewell branding (full fee proposal circulated to Councillors) To consider a fee proposal to refresh the OPC logo for current day uses online and produce branding for The Bridewell.

246/22 King's Coronation May 2023 (page 39)

- i) To receive a verbal progress report from the working group.
- ii) To note plans for promoting informal picnicking at Beacon Field and All Saints churchyard as a lower key, non-ticketed event.
- iii) To consider the proposed charge of £40 per ticket (inclusive of VAT) for the street party, to seat a table of 6.

247/22 Countryside Conservation Volunteer Working Group

To receive a progress report from Cllr Bell.



Planning & Development Committee

248/22 To ratify the responses proposed by the Planning & Development Committee held by Zoom 24th January <u>https://odihamparishcouncil.gov.uk/wp-</u> <u>content/uploads/2023/01/Notes-230124-draft.pdf</u> and 13th February 2023 <u>https://odihamparishcouncil.gov.uk/wp-</u> <u>content/uploads/2023/02/Notes-230213-draft.pdf</u>

249/22 To consider new applications received which are due to be determined before the next Planning & Development meeting

118/22 - 23/00329/HOU

Address: Frenchmans Corner 4 Archery Fields Odiham Hook Hampshire RG29 1AE

Details: Erection of a single storey front extension, two storey side extensions and new pitched roof over garage.

Financial Matters

- **250/22** Payments Listing (to be circulated to Councillors separately) To approve the payments listing for the period 16th December to 21st February and appoint 2 Councillors to complete the payment approval process for outstanding payments.
- 251/22 To noted date of next meeting 21st March 2023.

Confidential Matters

252/22 To pass a resolution in accordance with the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960 to exclude the public and press to consider confidential contractual and staffing matters which meet the criteria of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 Part 1.

253/22 Chapel Cottage (page 40)

To receive a verbal progress report from the Clerk on the actions agreed at the previous meeting and note the current financial position.

254/22 The Bridewell (pages 41-44)

- i) To receive an update from The Bridewell Working Group noting the listed planning application to install the new toilet.
- ii) To consider the revised quote for installing the new toilet in the new position (pages 41-42).
- iii) To note the proposal to lock the new toilet and make available only to staff and tenants to comply with Workplace (Health, Safety and Welfare) Regulations 1992 Regulation 20.



- iv) To review the draft business plan and accept comments which will be revised by the working group following the meeting and referred to the March council meeting for adoption (separate attachment).
- v) To consider questions raised regarding the proposed use and business opportunity relating to the upstairs space (pages 43-44).
- 255/22 To receive a verbal report from CIIr Verdon as Chair of the Planning & Development Committee regarding affordable housing proposals in the parish

Full Council				
Date of meeting	Agenda ref no	Cllr to action	Details	Status
OUTSTANDIN				
Nov-22		Clerk	Change previous minutes from draft and add to website.	Complete
		Clerk	Refer updated policies relating to Civility and Respect pledae to agenda.	Complete
		Clerk	Produce 4 x certificates or plaques of the VoY winner certificate.	Complete
	100/22		Refer other spending suggestions to a future meeting.	Complete
	161/22	Clerk	Add final Conservation Area Appraisal to website and promote.	Complete
		Clerk	Respond to Hart District Council draft Corporate Plan for 2023-27.	Complete
	164/22	Clerk	Submit OPC's comment to Appeal Statement - land on the south west side of Dunleys Hill.	On hold. Awaiting formal appeal number.
	165/22	Clerk/Cllrs RC/PV	Set up payments and complete the payment approval process.	Complete
	166/22	Clerk	Transfer £1,200 to Cllr TG to cover the cost of RAF Christmas gifts.	Complete
		CllrTG	Complete transfer of gifts to RAF personnel.	Complete
	167/22	Clerk	Refer decision on Hampshire Trust Bank investment to next meeting.	Complete
	170/22	Clerk	Complete research on Bridewell works priorities and submit grant application for HCC Leaders grant.	Complete
Dec-22	173/22	Clerk	Change previous minutes from draft and add to website.	Complete
	180/22	Clerk	Add Equality, Diversity & Inclusion policy and Dignity at Work policy and Councillor Officer protocol to website.	Complete
	404/22	Clerk	Sign up to NALC Civility and Respect Pledge.	Complete
	181/22	Clerk/AO	Instruct contractor to revise grounds maintenance schedule in line with Biodiversity Action Plan.	Complete
	182/22	Clerk	Refer internal audit report and actions to Finance Committee.	Complete
		Clerk	Add new Grant Giving policy to website and promote 31st December closing date.	Complete
	184/22	Clerk	Ask DS if he is willing to join Countryside Conservation Voluneer Work Group.	Complete
	185/22	Clerk Clerk	Premises licence - respond to InOdiham. Premises licence - apply to replace requirement to have a DPS with a management committee.	Complete
		Clerk	Premises licence - apply to replace requirement to have a DPS with a management committee.	Application submitted
	186/22	Clerk	Souce furniture quote for street party.	On agenda
		Clerk	Accept HCC's offer to update the village nameplates utilising the £400 remaining VoY prize fund.	Complete
		Clerk/AO	Accept Commonwealth War Graves Commision request to install signage at Odiham Cemetery.	Complete
	100/22	Clerk/AO	Complete works.	
	192/22	Clerk	Submit planning comments to Hart.	Complete
		CllrAMc	Make representation to the Hart planning committee re 4 The Bell Public House applications.	Complete
	194/22	Clerk	Write to 112 High Street re illuminated signage.	Complete. No response.
	195/22	Clerk/CllrRC/Cllr Amc	Set up payments online and complete payment process.	Complete
	196/22	Clerk	Add updated Financial Regulations to website.	Complete
		Clerk	Refer Financial Regulations to Finance Committee to consider delegated expenditure limits.	Complete
	197/22	Clerk	Instruct Hampshire Trust Bank one year bond investment.	Complete
	201/22	Clerk/AO	Implement decision re rough sleeper at Odiham Cemetery.	Complete
Jan-23		Clerk	Change previous minutes from draft and add to website.	Complete
		Cllr Hale	Forward details re lifting of DPA restrictions on Crownfields site.	
		Clerk	Correspondence to 112 High Street.	Referred to Planning & Development
		Clerk	Research permanent solution for fencing around Chapels.	Referred to Amenities Committee
	213/22	Clerk	Add annual risk assessment to web & prepare for audit.	Complete
		Clerk	Respond to Hart re OPC's confirmation to revise wording in S106 agreement to correctly allocate S106 funds in Dogmersfield.	Complete
		Clerk	Refer OPC's agreement to proposed HALC Articles of Association.	Complete but must be present at AGM to vote
		Clerk/Deputy Clerk	Report grant to Vicitim Support and transfer funds.	Complete
		Clerk/Deputy Clerk	Report grant to Odiham Society and transfer funds.	Complete
		Clerk/Deputy Clerk	Complete research on new SID, liaise with Speedwatch group and purchase.	Further research in progress
	217/22 218/22ii	Clerk/Deputy Clerk	Progress plans for APA at Robert Mays with guest speakers and community stands.	Complete
		Clerk/Deputy Clerk	Book furniture for Street Party.	Complete Complete. Further recommendations on agenda.
		Clerk/Deputy Clerk Clerk/Chair	Hold Coronation working party meeting and progress planning. Submit precept notification form to Hart as charging authority.	Complete Further recommendations on agenda.
		Clerk	Add budget and precept decisions to website.	Complete
		Clerk	Set up 2023/24 budget on Scribe.	Complete
	224/22	Clerk	Accept Zurich insurance new policy proposals.	Complete
		Clerk	Pay ver 1.	Hold until end March. Due 1st April.
	227/22	Clerk/Amenities Officer	Seek structural surveyor's professional advice on Chapel Cottage chimney and rectify any faults found.	Awaiting inspection date
		Clerk/Amenities Officer	Arrange for reporting sections of lower wall.	
	228/22ii	Clerk/Cllr Cornall	Submit listed building application for new toilet location.	Complete
		Clerk/working group	Progress Bridewell timeline.	Meeting held. Business Plan on agenda.
	1			



Hampshire Association of Local Councils

President: Professor John Denham FRSA Chief Executive: Dawn Hamblet MSc, FICPD

Notice of Extraordinary General Meeting of Hampshire Association of Local Councils Limited

Notice is hereby given that an Extraordinary Meeting ("**Meeting**") of Hampshire Association of Local Councils Limited ("**Company**") will be held as a hybrid meeting, both online via Zoom and at the Cobbetts Suite, Hampshire Rural Business Centre, Sparsholt College, Sparsholt on 23rd February 2023 at 18:00hrs.

Resolutions

You will be asked to consider and vote on the resolution below. Resolution 1 will be proposed as a special resolution.

1. To agree, by special resolution, to remove the Articles of Association in their entirety to be substituted with the new Articles of Association *(appended)*

A member (Hampshire ALC Member Council) of the company is entitled to appoint another person as their proxy to exercise all or any of their rights to attend and to speak and vote at a meeting of the company. This means the Council may appoint a Councillor or a member of staff to attend on the Council's behalf and to speak and vote at this meeting.

By order of the Board

.....

Amy Taylor Company Secretary Floor 2 Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, England, SO50 9YN 16th December 2022

Energy Efficient, Warmer Homes See where the heat is escaping from your home **Invitation for a FREE Thermal Image**



Last year, Odiham Parish Council launched the Greening Odiham and North Warnborough initiative – our community voted to take 8 actions to save energy, reduce CO₂ emissions and help mitigate climate change. Those actions remain important, see the OPC website for more details. Now we are launching phase 2, to help you check how heat efficient your home is – and it's FREE.

We are inviting you to book a visit from our volunteers who will use a thermal imaging camera to highlight where heat is escaping from your home. This image will indicate where you might do more to insulate, if what you are doing is working or where you may want to seek professional advice. NB This offer is not connected to any commercial enterprise.

If you would like to have a heat camera visit you for free, please fill in the form below and return it to the Parish Office, The Bridewell (Old Library), The Bury, Odiham ASAP, or send an email - the form is also available online on the OPC website:

https://odihamparishcouncil.gov.uk/the-greening-campaign/thermal-imaging

The cameras will be available from 24th February for a minimum of 2 weeks – we will respond to as many requests as possible on a first come, first served basis.

If you are successful, we will arrange a time with you – it will be after sunset as the images are more informative then. We will send you the images we take. All we ask in return is that you give us some feedback – see bottom of the page.

To contact someone from Greening Odiham and North Warnborough, email cllrmcfarlane@odiham.org.uk Use the subject : Greening Campaign Energy

In return for the free imaging we will ask you to fill in the feedback form using the link below. It will not ask for any personal information, we just want to learn what impact this service is having. You will not be contacted by anyone trying to sell you anything.

https://greening-campaign.org/home-thermal-imaging-feedback/

You will also be invited by email to attend a **FREE on-line event** to learn how to reduce heat loss using affordable methods or access sources of funding. Some of this will apply even if you are in rented accommodation. Again, this is not a sales pitch but purely for sharing information.

Please be respectful to our volunteers – please note we cannot give professional advice.

Your name		
Your address		
Your email		
Your phone number		
I am happy for my contact information	tion to be stored for Greening Odiham and	
North Warnborough		GREE
Please tick here to agree		
(we will not share your information	n outside the team running the programme)	
I would like to help to take the		
images (training provided)		ODIHAM & WARNBC



BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLAN

Adopted on 3 September 2018 Revised 23 March 2020 and 21 February 2023

1. Introduction

OPC has recognised the importance of producing and maintaining a Business Continuity Plan for implementation in the event of disruptions to the day to day running of the Council. This plan identifies the instances of disruption, the immediate responses, the procedures to follow to maintain continuity of service and the follow-up procedures and necessary changes to service delivery, where such services are disrupted by factors within Odiham Parish Council's area of responsibility.

2. Core Business of Odiham Parish Council

The Council provides local services to its electorate which includes responsibility and the provision of:

The Bridewell in The Bury

- Website, notice boards, newsletter information and the use of other social media to communicate important and relevant matters
- Parks and Opens Spaces including 4 play areas
- Benches
- Waste bins in the play areas
- King Street cemetery
- Allotment site in Hook Road
- King Street public toilets
- The Parish Room The Parish Room (external and outside space only)
- Christmas trees and lights in the High Street
- The Stocks and War Memorial
- Issuing of grants, generally twice a year
- Lengthsman works the Lengthsman is funded by HCC
- Acting as a statutory consultee on planning applications
- Managing the finances of the Council and using the precept for the benefit of the community
- Liaising with the District and County Councils and other partner organisations on issues that affect the parish
- Responding to residents' enquiries and signposting
- <u>Civic responsibility such as organising civic events</u>

3. Potential causes of disruption:

- Storm, tempest, flood and snow
- Fire
- Terrorism
- Widespread electricity loss
- Pandemic Virus
- Industrial accident
- Loss of Staff through death, illness or injury or resignation, whilst on or off Council duty
- Resignation of Cllrs by any reason which leaves the Council inquorate
- Loss of knowledge and cheque signatories following a resignation

4. Potential Impact and Continuity Plan

	Event	Minimise Impact	Immediate Action	Continuity	Longer Term
1	Loss of Clerk due to death, sudden/ long term illness, incapacity or resignation	a) Ensure office, admin and meeting procedures are clearly documented and kept in secure	 a) Chairman and Vice- Chairman to be informed. b) Call extraordinary meeting to confirm 	a) Recruit temporary or permanent replacement as a matter of	 a) Training other staff. b) Succession planning. c) Review
		place which is known to Chair/Vice	appointment of temporary cover	urgency. a)b) Provide	procedures. d) Regular

		 Chair. b) Ensure rolling program is up to date and all key tasks are listed. c) Ensure key contacts list is kept up to date. d) Access to log ins and passwords are available via the IT consultant. 	c)	and/or motion to delegate decision making. Call staffing committee asap to discuss options.		sufficient general reserves to cover unforeseen changes.		Councillor training.
2	Death or serious injury to member of staff whilst carrying out Council duties	As above.	a) b) c)	Clerk to liaise with Chair re liaison with next of kin and informing the Council. Clerk/Chair to inform the insurance company. Clerk/Chair to inform HSE if necessary & co- operate with any investigation as a high priority.	<u>a)</u>	_Recruit temporary or permanent replacement as a matter of urgency.) Keep insurance policy under regular review.	a)	Review and risk assess procedures, working practices and method statements to minimise future risk.
3	Loss of ClIrs due to multiple resignations (causing Council to be inquorate).	a) Co-option Policy. b) Keep up-to-date with Electoral Services rules and regulations. b)c) Follow best practice and develop clear policies to encourage full engagement.	a) b)	Clerk to inform remaining ClIrs and employees of the Council.	a) b) c)	Follow by- election process. Follow co-option process, if possible. Hart DC to decide on temporary working strategy for Council business.	a)	Council to review procedures, training and working practices to retain ClIrs.
4	Loss of Council documents due to fire, flood or other causes.	 a) Server files backed up and back-up disk stored off site. b) *Important documents scanned and saved on server. c) Paper files stored in metal cabinets. d) Staff laptops stored at home. e) Office 365 email accounts backed up on Cloud. 	a)	Clerk to inform Council <u>and IT</u> <u>support and and</u> insurance company if necessary.	a)	Council to discuss at next meeting.	a)	Review procedures to ensure improvements and security.
5	Loss of Council equipment due to theft, fault or breakdown.	 a) Sufficient budgets for rolling program to replace key equipment. b) Ensure service and maintenance contracts are in place for key equipment. c) Standing Orders & 	a) b)	Decide on immediate replacement. Report theft to police and insurance company.	a) b) <u>c)</u>	Maintain asset register. Keep key equipment under review. Build reserves to cover replacement costs at end of life expectancy.	a)	Include key equipment in 3-5 year plans.

		Financial Regs allow delegated authority for emergency expenditure.	c)d) Annual risk assessment of <u>the council.</u>	
6	Damage to Parish office <u>or other</u> <u>council owned</u> <u>assets or Parish Room.</u>	 a) Maintain adequate insurance cover. b) Carry out fire risk assessment. c) Ensure staff working practices don't increase risk. d) Staff keep laptops at home. a) Clerk to inform insurance company and Council. b) Notify-Parish Room users. Relevant tenants and hirers. 	a) Use alternative premises for administrative work or admin a) Regular review of insurance policy to ensure adequate cover. b) Work with b) Regular asset valuation. contractors to arrange timely repairs. c) Review risk assessment. c) Use alternative premises for meetings. b)	
7	Staff unable to get to work due to adverse weather conditions or following national advice to self isolate or quarantine.	 a) Staff laptops have access to all OPC files and are kept at home b) All staff have contact details for each other. c) Chair & Vice Chair have contact details for Clerk. d) Method in place to keep up to date with national and sector guidance. e) Selected Councillors issued with office and parish room keys. f) Process to allow selected Councillors to have access to office procedures. g) Business continuity plan. f) Scheme of delegation. a) Clerk to advise the Chair/Vice Chair b) Clerk to update the website to advise residents that the parish office may b closed. c) Staff to contact the Clerk if they are unable to get to work. d) OPC to allow staff the right to follow national guidelines e) Consider whether an EGM is required to delegate decisio making. 	a) Keep position under constant review. b) Maintain business continuity where possible by working at work. b) Utilise scheme of delegation.	
<u>8</u>	Loss of knowledge and bank signatories following election.	a) Scheme of delegation. a) Communicate with former Cllrs asap b) Maintain 4 bank signatories. after election. c) Ensure robust agenda reports and adopted plans to provide background and history. b) Ensure bank signatories are added on first annual council agenda after election. Prepare bank mandate form before meeting.	a) Prepare training and briefing notes for new Cllrs. b) Keep scheme of delegation under review to ensure it's fit for purpose. b	 Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0 cm + Indent at: 0.63 cm Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0 cm + Indent at: 0.63 cm Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0 cm + Indent at: 0.63 cm Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0 cm + Indent at: 0.63 cm Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0 cm + Indent at: 0.63 cm

Important documents to be scanned

Important documents to be scanned and stored in a secure location on the server include:

- Staff contact details
- Staff next of kin details
- External contacts including the accountants and auditors details
- Land registry documents
- Leases/tenancy agreements
- Bank account details



REPORT ON:2023/24 Meeting CalendarWRITTEN BY:Parish ClerkMEETING DATE: 21^{st} February 2023AGENDA ITEM:241/22

Introduction

The proposed 2023/24 meeting calendar for the ensuing year is presented for approval on the basis there are no changes to the current governance structure and the following decisions remain. These are:

- Full Council meetings are scheduled on the third Tuesday of a month.
- The December full Council meeting is brought forward to the second Tuesday to avoid the week before Christmas.
- The August full Council meeting has been scheduled but OPC reserves the right to cancel if there is minimal business to be discussed.
- Planning & Development Committee meetings are scheduled every three weeks on Zoom. Decisions will be submitted to Hart under the Clerk's delegated authority and ratified at the next available full Council meeting.
- Community Committee financial matters will be referred to full council and Community Committee discussions on projects and events will be held by Zoom and any recommendations made by Zoom will be ratified at the next full Council meeting. Bi-monthly meetings have been scheduled to take place after the Planning & Development Committee but these dates are likely to be flexible to coincide with event and project planning.
- The Traffic Partnership meetings have not been scheduled and the new Council will need to determine the way forward.
- The half yearly Staffing Committee meetings have been adjusted so that the first meeting is held in May to elect a committee chairman.



2023/24 Meeting dates

All meetings, unless otherwise stated, are held on a Tuesday in The Library Room, The Bridwell, The Bury, Odiham, at 7.30pm. The agenda for each meeting will be posted on the council's noticeboards and the website giving the required 3 clear days' notices before each meeting. Members of the press and public are invited to attend all meetings, unless stated on the agenda.

	May '23	Jun '23	Jul '23	Aug '23	Sep '23	Oct '23	Nov '23	Dec '23	Jan '24	Feb '24	Mar '24	Apr '24	May '24
Full Council	16 th (Annual)	20 th	18 th	15 th	19 th	17 th	21 st	12 th	16 th	20 th	19 th	16 th	21 st (Annual)
Planning & Development	9 th 30 th	21 ^{st (Wed)}	11 th	1 st 22 nd	12 th	3 rd 24 th	14 th	5 th & full	3 ^{rd (Wed)} 23 rd	13 th	5 th 26 th	16 th	7 th
Committee (Zoom)								Council 12th Dec					
Finance Committee			18 th (After full			17 th (After full			16 th (After full			16 th (After full	
Amenity Area Committee	16 th (After full Council)		Council)	15 th (After full Council)		Council)	21 st (After full Council)		Council)	20 th (After full Council)		Council)	21 st (After full Council)
Community Committee	9 th (After Planning)		11th (After Planning)		12 th (After Planning)		14 th (After Planning)		23 rd (After Planning)		26 th (After full Council)		7 th (After Planning)
Staffing Committee	24 th 11am					11 th 11am							22 nd 11am
Budget Workshop (not open to the public)							7 th (via Zoom)						



Standing Orders

Amended and Adopted ??

Edit History:

Rev. No	Date	Revision details	Minute Ref
1	07.07.14	Adopted	
2	03.11.14	Amended and adopted	
3	13.04.15	Amended and adopted	
4	18.05.15	Reviewed	
5	09.05.16	Reviewed	
6	03.10.16	Amended and adopted	
7	09.01.17	Updated	
8	08.05.17	Amended and adopted	
9	14.05.18	Amended and adopted	
10	13.05.19	Amended and adopted	
11	14.01.20	Amended and adopted	
12	16.02.21	Reviewed and adopted	
13	15.02.22	Reviewed and adopted	
14	21.02.23	Reviewed	

CONTENTS

Meetings4
Ordinary Council meetings
Committees and sub-committees
Extraordinary meetings of the council, committees and sub-committees
Rules of debate at meetings9
Disorderly conduct at meetings 10
Previous resolutions
Voting on appointments
Motions requiring written notice
Motions not requiring written notice
Management of Information
Draft minutes
Code of conduct and dispensations
Code of conduct complaints
Proper Officer
Responsible Financial Officer
Accounts and accounting statements
Financial controls and procurement17
Handling staff matters
Responsibilities to provide information
Responsibilities under Data Prootection Legislation
Relations with the Press/Media19
Excution and Sealing of Legal Deeds 19
Communication with District Councillors
Restrictions on Councillor activities
Standing orders generally

1. Meetings

Mandatory for full Council meetings	•
Mandatory for committee meetings	•
Mandatory for sub-committee meetings	

Note

- a) Different symbol shapes are used to facilitate printing on black and white printers.
- b) Mandatory items are in bold.
- c) Changes to model Standing Orders relevant only to Odiham Parish Council are in italics
- Meetings shall not take place in premises, which at the time of the meeting, are used for the supply of alcohol unless no other premises are available free of charge or at a reasonable cost.
- The minimum three clear days' public notice for a meeting does not include the day on which the notice was issued, the day of the meeting, a Sunday, a day of the Christmas break, a day of the Easter break or of a bank holiday or a day appointed for public thanksgiving or mourning.
- c The minimum three clear day's public notice for a meeting does not include the day on which the notice was issued or the day of the meeting unless the meeting is convened at shorter notice.
- d Meetings shall be open to the public unless their presence is prejudicial to the public
 interest by reason of the confidential nature of the business to be transacted or for other special reasons. The public's exclusion from part or all of a meeting shall be by a resolution which shall give reasons for the public's exclusion.
- e Members of the public may make representations, answer questions and give evidence at a
 meeting which they are entitled to attend in respect of the business on the agenda or another
 topic at the discretion of the Chairman.
 - f The period of time designated for public participation at a meeting in accordance with Standing Order 1 (e) shall not exceed *10 minutes* unless directed by the Chairman of the meeting.
 - g Subject to Standing Order 1 (f) above, a member of the public shall not speak for more than 3 *minutes unless directed by the Chairman.*
 - h In accordance with Standing Order 1(e) above, a question shall not require a response at the meeting nor start a debate on the question. The Chairman of the meeting may direct that a written or oral response be given.
 - i A record of a public participation session at a meeting shall be included in the minutes of that meeting.

- j A person shall raise his or her hand when requesting to speak and, *if required by the Chairman*, stand when speaking (except when a person has a disability or is likely to suffer discomfort).
- k Any person speaking at a meeting shall address his comments to the Chairman.
- I Only one person is permitted to speak at a time. If more than one person wishes to speak the Chairman of the meeting shall direct the order of speaking.
- m Subject to Standing Order 1 (n) a person who attends a meeting is permitted to report on the meeting whilst the meeting is open to the public. To "report" means to film, photograph, make an audio recording of meeting proceedings, use any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear the meeting as it takes place to later or to report or to provide oral or written commentary about the meeting so that the report or commentary is available as the meeting takes place or later to persons not present.

Persons reporting at a meeting are kindly requested to give notice that they are doing so before they begin.

- A person present at a meeting may not provide an oral report or oral commentary about a meeting as it takes place without permission.
- The press shall be provided with reasonable facilities for the taking of their report of all or
 part of a meeting at which they are entitled to be present.
- P The Chairman, if present, shall preside at a meeting. If the Chairman is absent from a meeting, the Vice-Chairman, if present, shall preside. If both the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman are absent from a meeting, a Councillor as chosen by the Councillors present at the meeting shall preside at the meeting.
- q The Chairman of a meeting may give an original vote on any matter put to the vote, and in
 the case of an equality of votes may exercise his or her casting vote whether or not he or
 she gave an original vote. (See also standing orders 2 (h) and (i) below.)
- r Subject to a meeting being quorate, all questions at a meeting shall be decided by a
 majority of the Councillors *or* Non-Councillors with voting rights present and voting.
 - s Unless Standing Orders provide otherwise, voting on a question shall be by a show of hands. At the request of a Councillor, the voting on any question shall be recorded so as to show whether each Councillor present and voting gave his or her vote for or against that question. Such a request shall be made before moving on to the next item of business on the agenda.
- t The minutes of a meeting shall include an accurate record of the following:
 - i. the time and place of the meeting;
 - ii. the names of Councillors present and absent;
 - iii. interests that have been declared by Councillors and non-Councillors with voting

rights;

- the grant of dispensations (if any) to Councillors and non-Councillors with voting rights;
- v. whether a Councillor or non-Councillor with voting rights left the meeting when matters that they held interests in were being considered;
- vi. if there was a public participation session; and
- vii. the resolutions made.
- viii. actions to be taken and by whom.
- A Councillor or a non-councillor with voting rights who has a disclosable, pecuniary
 interest or another interest as set out in the Council's Code of Conduct in a matter being
 considered at a meeting is subject to statutory limitations or restrictions under the code on his or her right to participate and vote on that matter.
 - No business may be transacted at a meeting unless at least one third of the whole number of members of the Council are present (4 Councillors for OPC) and in no case shall the quorum of a meeting be less than 3 (committees).
 - If a meeting is or becomes inquorate no business shall be transacted and the meeting shall
 be closed. The business on the agenda for the meeting shall be adjourned to another meeting.
 - x A meeting or a series of meetings on a single occasion shall not *normally* exceed a period of 2 *hours*.
 - y The Chairman of the meeting may allow experts in a specific field to address the meeting to offer advice or clarity on agenda items.
 - ^z Documents for all public meetings will be added to the website on the Friday prior to the meeting. Any member of the public requiring a paper copy of the pack must request this to the parish office as they will not be available at the meeting.

Ordinary Council meetings

- a In an election year, the annual meeting of the Council shall be held on or within 14 days following the day on which the new Councillors elected take office.
- b In a year which is not an election year, the annual meeting of the Council shall be held on such a day in May as the Council may direct.
- c If no other time is fixed, the annual meeting of the Council shall take place at 6pm.
- d In addition to the annual meeting of the Council, at least three other ordinary meetings shall be held in each year on such dates and times as the Council directs.
- e The first business conducted at the annual meeting of the Council shall be the election of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council.
- f The Chairman of the Council, unless he or she has resigned or becomes disqualified, shall continue in office and preside at the annual meeting until his or her successor is elected at the next annual meeting of the Council.
- g The Vice-Chairman of the Council, unless he or she resigns or becomes

disqualified, shall hold office until immediately after the election of the Chairman of the Council at the next annual meeting of the Council.

- In an election year, if the current Chairman of the Council has not been re-elected as a member of the Council, he or she shall preside at the meeting until a successor Chairman of the Council has been elected. The current Chairman of the Council shall not have an original vote in respect of the election of the new Chairman of the Council but must give a casting vote in the case of an equality of votes.
- In an election year, if the current Chairman of the Council has been re-elected as a member of the Council, he or she shall preside at the meeting until a new
 Chairman of the Council has been elected. He or she may exercise an original vote in respect of the election of the new Chairman of the Council and shall give a casting vote in the case of an equality of votes.
- j Following the election of the Chairman of the Council and Vice-Chairman of the Council at the annual meeting of the Council, the order of business shall include:
 - In an election year, delivery by the Chairman and Councillors of their acceptance of office forms unless the Council resolves for this to be done at a later date. In a year which is not an election year, delivery by the Chairman of his or her acceptance of office form unless the Council resolves for this to be done at a later date;
 - ii. *Receive and note* the minutes of the last meeting of the Council and to receive and note minutes of and/or to determine recommendations made by committees;
 - iii. Appointment of members to existing committees;
 - iv. Review of representation on or work with external bodies and arrangements for reporting back;
 - v. *If applicable*, in an election year, to make arrangements with a view to the Council becoming eligible to exercise the general power of competence in the future;
- k NOTE: A Councillor does not have to be present to be appointed as Chairman, to a
 Committee or as Chair of a Committee. They will need to be nominated and seconded
 by Councillors present at the meeting.
- 1 The following need to be in the annual cycle of business
 - i. Review and adoption of appropriate Standing Orders and Financial Regulations;
 - ii. Review of arrangements (including legal agreements) with other local authorities, not-for-profit bodies and businesses;
 - iii. Review of inventory of land and assets including buildings and office equipment;
 - iv. Review and confirmation of arrangements for insurance cover in respect of all *insurable* risks;
 - v. Review of the Council's and/or employees' subscriptions to other bodies;
 - vi. Setting the dates, time and place of ordinary meetings of the full Council up to and including the next annual meeting of full Council.
 - vii. Review of the Council's expenditure incurred under s.137 of the Local Government

Act 1972 or the general power of competence;

- m The following need to be reviewed at least every two years or following a change in legislation or sector advice:
 - Review of the Council's complaints procedure included in the Statement of Commitment to the Parish of Odiham 2019-23;
 - Review of the Council's policies, procedures and practices in respect of its obligations under the Freedom of Information and Data Protection legislation (see also Standing Order 11,20 and 21);
 - iii. Review of the Council's Social Media and Electronic Communications Policy;
 - iv. Review of the Council's Data Protection Policy;
 - v. Review of the Council's Document Retention Policy;
 - vi. Review of the Council's employment policies and procedures;
 - vii. Review of the Council's Reserves Policy;
 - viii. Review of the Council's Press and Media Policy and Communication Guidelines;

2. Committees and sub-committees

- a. Unless the Council determines otherwise, a committee may appoint a subcommittee *or working group* whose terms of reference and members shall be determined by the committee.
- b. The members of a committee may include non-councillors unless it is a committee which regulates and controls the finances of the Council.
- c. Unless the Council determines otherwise, all the members of an advisory committee and a sub-committee of the advisory committee may be non-councillors.
- d. All committees and sub-committees of the Council act with the full power and authority of the Council in lawfully discharging functions that fall within their respective terms of reference, agreed budgets and current Council policies.
- e. The Council may appoint standing committees and other committees or working groups as may be necessary and:
 - i. shall approve their terms of reference;
 - shall approve the number and time of the ordinary meetings of a standing committee up until the date of the next annual meeting of the full Council;
 - shall permit a committee other than in respect of the ordinary meetings of a committee to determine the number and times of its meetings;
 - iv. shall subject to standing order 3 (b) and (c) above, appoint and determine the terms of office of members of such a committee;
 - v. may subject to standing order 3 (b) and (c) above appoint and determine the terms of office of the substitute members to a committee whose role is to replace the ordinary members at a meeting of a committee if the ordinary members of the committee confirm to the proper officer *3 days* before the meeting that they are

unable to attend;

- vi. shall after it has appointed the members of a standing committee, appoint the Chair of the standing committee;
- vii. shall permit a committee other than a standing committee to appoint its owns Chair at the first meeting;
- viii. shall determine the place, notice requirements and quorum for a meeting of a committee and sub-committee which shall be no less than 3;
- ix. shall determine if the public and press are permitted to attend the meetings of a sub-committee and also the advance notice requirement, if any, required for the meeting of a sub-committee;
- x. shall determine if the public may participate at a meeting of a committee or subcommittee that they are permitted to attend;
- xi. may dissolve a committee or sub-committee.

3. Extraordinary meetings of the council,

committee and sub-committees

- a The Chairman of the Council may convene an extraordinary meeting of the Council at any time.
- If the Chairman of the Council does not call an extraordinary meeting of the Council within 7 days of having been requested in writing to do so by 2
 Councillors, any 2 Councillors may convene an extraordinary meeting of the Council. The public notice giving the time, place and agenda for such a meeting must be signed by the 2 Councillors.
- c The Chair of a committee (or a sub-committee) may convene an extraordinary meeting of the committee or sub-committee at any time.
- d If the Chair of a committee (or a sub-committee) does not call an extraordinary meeting *within 5 days* of having been requested by to do so by 2 members of the committee or sub-committee, any 2 members of the committee or sub-committee may convene an extraordinary meeting of a committee (or a sub-committee).

4. Rules of debate at meetings

- a Motions on the agenda shall be considered in the order that they appear on the agenda unless the order is changed at the discretion of the Chairman of the meeting.
- b A motion (including an amendment) shall not be progressed unless it has been moved and seconded.
- c A motion on the agenda that is not moved by its proposer may be treated by the Chairman of the meeting as withdrawn.
- d If a motion (including an amendment) has been seconded, it may be withdrawn by the proposer only with the consent of the seconded and the meeting.

- e An amendment is a proposal to remove or add words to a motion. It shall not negate the motion.
- f If an amendment to the original motion is carried, the original motion (as amended) becomes the substantive motion upon which further amendment(s) may be moved.
- g A Councillor may move an amendment to his or her own motion if agreed by the meeting. If a motion has already been seconded, the amendment shall be with the consent of the seconder and the meeting.
- h If there is more than one amendment to an original or substantive motion, the amendments shall be moved in the order directed by the Chairman of the meeting.
- i Subject to Standing Order 5 (k) below, only one amendment shall be moved and debated at a time, the order of which shall be directed by the Chairman of the meeting.
- j One or more amendments may be discussed together if the Chairman of the meeting considers this expedient but each amendment shall be voted upon separately.
- k A Councillor may not move more than one amendment to an original or substantive motion.
- 1 The mover of an amendment has no right of reply at the end of the debate on it.
- m Where a series of amendments to an original motion are carried, the mover of the original motion shall have a right of reply either at the end of debate on the first amendment or at the very end of debate on the final substantive motion immediately before it is put to the vote.
- n Unless permitted by the Chairman of the meeting, a Councillor may speak once in the debate on a motion except:
 - i. to speak on an amendment moved by another Councillor;
 - ii. to move or speak on another amendment if the motion has been amended since he or she last spoke;
 - iii. to make a point of order;
 - iv. to give a personal explanation;
 - v. to exercise a right of reply.
- During the debate of a motion, a Councillor may interrupt only on a point of order or a personal explanation and the Councillor who was interrupted shall stop speaking. A Councillor raising a point of order shall identify the Standing Order which he considers has been breached or specify the irregularity in the proceedings of the meeting that they are concerned by.
- p A point of order shall be decided by the Chairman and his or her decision shall be final.
- q When a motion is under debate, no other motion shall be moved except:
 - i. to amend the motion;
 - ii. to proceed to the next business;
 - iii. to adjourn the debate;
 - iv. to put the motion to a vote;
 - v. to ask a person to be no longer heard or to leave the meeting;
 - vi. to refer a motion to a committee or sub-committee for consideration;

- vii. to exclude the public and press;
- viii. to adjourn the meeting;
- ix. to suspend particular Standing Order(s), except those which reflect mandatory statutory or legal requirements.
- r Before an original or substantive motion is put to the vote, the Chairman of the meeting shall be satisfied that the motion has been sufficiently debated and that the mover of the motion under debate has exercised or waived his or her right of reply.
- s Excluding motions moved under Standing Order 5 (r) above, the contribution or speeches by a Councillor shall relate only to the motion under discussion and shall not exceed *3 minutes* without the consent of the Chairman of the meeting.

5. Disorderly conduct at meetings

- a No person shall obstruct the transaction of business at a meeting or behave offensively or improperly. If this Standing Order is ignored, the Chairman of the meeting shall request such person(s) to moderate or improve their conduct.
- b If the person(s) disregard the request of the Chairman of the meeting to moderate or improve their conduct, any Councillor or the Chairman of the meeting may move that the person be no longer heard or excluded from the meeting. The motion, if seconded, shall be put to the vote without discussion.
- c If a resolution made in accordance with Standing Order 6(b) above is ignored, the
 Chairman of the meeting may take further reasonable steps to restore order to progress
 the meeting. This may include temporarily suspending or closing the meeting.

6. Previous resolutions

- a A resolution shall not be reversed within 6 months except either by a special motion, which requires written notice by a least *2 Councillors* to be given to the Proper Officer in accordance with Standing Order 9 below, or by a motion moved in pursuance of the recommendation of a committee or sub-committee.
- b When a motion moved pursuant to Standing Order 7 (a) above has been disposed of, no similar motion may be moved within a further 6 months.

7. Voting on appointments

Where more than 2 persons have been nominated for a position to be filled by the Council and none of those persons has received an absolute majority of votes in their favour, the name of the person having the least number of votes shall be removed from the list and a fresh vote taken. This process shall continue until a majority of votes is given in favour of one person. A tie in voting may be settled by the casting vote exercisable by the Chairman of the meeting. Voting on appointment may be conducted by secret ballot if requested by any Councillor.

8. Motions requiring prior notice to be given to the Proper Officer

- a A motion shall relate to the responsibilities of the meeting for which it is tabled and in any event shall relate to the performance of the Council's statutory functions, powers and obligations or an issue which specifically affects the Council's area or its residents.
- b No motion may be moved at a meeting unless it is on the agenda and the mover has given notice to the Council's Proper Officer at least *5 clear days* before the next meeting. Clear days do not include the day of the notice or the day of the meeting.
- c A motion can be proposed by any Councillor or Non-councillor with voting rights. If two or more Councillors have submitted a proper motion it must be included in the agenda.
- d If the Proper Officer considers a motion received in accordance with Standing Order
 9(b) above is not clear in meaning, they will contact the mover to discuss a resubmission so that the motion can be understood.
- e If the wording or subject of a proposed motion is considered improper in that it falls outside the statutory functions, powers and obligations of the Council, the Proper Officer shall consult with the Chairman or Vice Chairman of the forthcoming meeting or, as the case may be, the Councillors who have convened the meeting, to consider whether the motion shall be included in the agenda or rejected.
- f The decision of the Chairman with advice from the Proper Officer, in consultation with the Chairman and/or Vice Chairman as to whether or not to include the motion in the agenda shall be final.
- g Motions rejected shall be recorded with an explanation by the Proper Officer of the reason for rejection.

9. Motions not requiring prior notice

The following motions may be moved at a meeting without prior notice to the Proper Officer:

- i. To correct an inaccuracy in the draft minutes of a meeting;
- ii. To move to a vote;
- iii. To defer consideration of a motion;
- iv. To refer a motion to a particular committee or sub-committee;
- v. To appoint a person to preside at a meeting;
- vi. To change the order of business on the agenda;
- vii. To proceed to the next business on the agenda;
- viii. To require a written report;
- ix. To appoint a member to a committee, sub-committee or working group;
- x. To extend the time limits for speaking;
- xi. To exclude the press and public from a meeting in respect of confidential or other

information which is prejudicial to the public interest;

- xii. To not hear further from a Councillor or a member of the public;
- xiii. To exclude a Councillor or member of the public for disorderly conduct;
- xiv. To temporarily suspend the meeting;
- xv. To suspend a particular standing order (unless it reflects mandatory statutory or legal requirements);
- xvi. To adjourn the meeting; or
- xvii. To close the meeting.

10. Management of Information

- a The Council shall have in place and keep under review, technical and organisational measures to keep secure information (including personal data) which it holds in paper and electronic form. Such arrangements shall include deciding who has access to personal data and encryption of personal data.
- b The Council shall have in place and keep under review, policies for the retention and safe destruction of all information (including personal data) which it holds in paper and electronic form. The Council's retention policy shall confirm the period for which information (including personal data) shall be retained or if this is not possible the criteria used to determine that period (e.g. the Limitation Act 1980).
- c The agenda, papers that support the agenda and the minutes of a meeting shall not disclose or otherwise undermine confidential information or personal data without legal justification.
- d Councillors, staff, the Council's contractors and agents shall not disclose confidential information or personal data without legal justification.

11. Draft minutes

- a Draft minutes of a meeting would normally be circulated to Councillors normally within five working days of the meeting. If the draft minutes of a preceding meeting have been served on Councillors with the agenda to attend the meeting at which they are due to be approved for accuracy, they shall be taken as read.
- b There shall be no discussion of the draft minutes of a preceding meeting except in relation to their accuracy. A motion to correct an inaccuracy in the minutes shall be moved in accordance with Standing Order 10 (a) (i) above.
- c The accuracy of draft minutes, including any amendment(s) made to them shall be confirmed by resolution and shall be signed by the Chairman of the meeting and stand as an accurate record of the meeting to which the minutes relate.
- If the Chairman of the meeting does not consider the minutes to be an accurate record of the meeting to which they relate, he or she shall sign the minutes and include a paragraph in the following terms or to the same effect:
 "The Chairman of this meeting does not believe that the minutes of the meeting of

the () held on [date] in respect of () were a correct record but his view was not upheld by the meeting and the minutes are confirmed as an accurate record of the proceedings."

e Subject to the publication of draft minutes in accordance with Standing Order 12(f) and standing Order 20 (a) and following a resolution which confirms the accuracy of the minutes of a meeting, the draft minutes or recordings of the meeting for which approved minutes exist shall be destroyed.

12. Code of conduct and dispensations

See also Standing Order 1 (u).

- a All Councillors and non-Councillors with voting rights shall observe the Code of Conduct adopted by the Council.
- b Unless he or she has been granted a dispensation, a Councillor or non-Councillor with voting rights shall withdraw from a meeting when it is considering a matter in which he or she has a disclosable pecuniary interest. They may return to the meeting after it has considered the matter in which the Councillor had the interest.
- c Unless he or she has been granted a dispensation, a Councillor or non-Councillor with voting rights shall withdraw from a meeting when it is considering a matter in which he or she has another interest if so required by the Council's Code of Conduct. They may return to the meeting after it has considered the matter in which the Councillor had the interest.
- d **Dispensation requests shall be in writing and submitted to the Proper Officer** *and the Chairman of the Council or Committee* as soon as possible before the meeting, or failing that, at the start of the meeting for which the dispensation is required.
- e A decision as to whether to grant a dispensation shall be made by the Proper Officer or by a meeting of the Council, or committee or sub-committee for which the dispensation is required and that decision is final.
- f A dispensation request shall confirm:
 - i. the description and the nature of the disclosable pecuniary interest or other interest to which the request for the dispensation relates;
 - ii. whether the dispensation is required to participate at a meeting in a discussion only or a discussion and a vote;
 - iii. the date of the meeting or the period (not exceeding four years) for which the dispensation is sought;
 - iv. an explanation as to why the dispensation is sought.
- g A dispensation may be granted in accordance with Standing Order 13 (e) if having regard to all relevant circumstances any of the following applies:
 - without the dispensation the number of persons prohibited from participating in the particular business would be so great a proportion of the meeting transacting the business as to impede the transaction of the business; or
 - ii. granting the dispensation is in the interest of persons living in the Council's

area; or

iii. it is otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation.

13. Code of conduct complaints

- a Upon notification by the District Council that it is dealing with a complaint that a Councillor or non-Councillor with voting rights has breached the Council's Code of Conduct, the Proper Officer shall, subject to Standing Order 11 above, report this to the Council.
- Where the notification in Standing Order 14 (a) relates to a complaint made by the
 Proper Officer, the Proper Officer shall notify the Chairman of the Council of this fact, and
 the Chairman shall nominate another staff member to assume the duties of the Proper
 Officer in relation to the complaint until it has been determined and the Council has
 agreed to what action, if any, to take in accordance with Standing Order 14 (d) below
- c The Council may:
 - i. provide information or evidence where such disclosure is necessary to investigate the complaint or is a legal requirement;
 - ii. seek information relevant to the complaint from the person or body with statutory responsibility for investigation of the matter.
- d Upon notification by the District Council that a Councillor or non-Councillor with voting rights has breached the Council's Code of Conduct, the Council shall consider any recommendations from the Monitoring Officer.

14. Proper Officer

- a The Proper Officer shall be either (i) the Clerk or (ii) other staff members(s) nominated by the Council to undertake the role of the Proper Officer when the Proper Officer is absent.
- b The Proper Officer shall;
 - i. At least 3 clear days before a meeting of the Council, a committee or a subcommittee,
 - serve on Councillors by delivery of post at their residences or by email authenticated in such manner as the Proper Officer thinks fit, a signed summons confirming the time, place and the agenda (provided the Councillor has consented to service by email) and
 - provide, in a conspicuous place, public notice of the time, place and agenda (provided the public notice with agenda of an extraordinary meeting of the Council convened by Councillors is signed by them).

See Standing Order 1(b) for the meaning of clear days for a meeting of the full Council and Standing Order 1 (c) for the meaning of clear days for a meeting of a committee.

ii Subject to Standing Order 9, include on the agenda all motions unless a Councillor

has given prior notice at least *3 days* before the meeting confirming his withdrawal of it;

- iii Convene a meeting of full Council for the election of a new Chairman of the Council, occasioned by a casual vacancy in his office;
- iv Facilitate inspection of the minutes by local government electors;
- v Receive and retain copies of byelaws made by other local authorities;
- vi Hold acceptance of office forms from Councillors;
- vii Hold a copy of every Councillor's register of interests;
- viii Assist with responding to requests made under the freedom of information legislation and rights exercisable under data protection legislation, in accordance with the Council's relevant policies and procedures;
- ix Liaise, as appropriate, as the Council's Data Protection Officer;
- x Receive and send general correspondence and notices on behalf of the Council except where there is a resolution to the contrary;
- xi Assist in the organisation of, storage of, access to, security of and destruction of information held by the Council in paper and electronic form subject to the requirement of data protection and freedom of information legislation and other legitimate requirements (e.g. the Limitation Act 1980);
- xii Arrange for legal deeds to be executed (see also Standing Order 23);
- xiii Arrange or manage the prompt authorisation, approval, and instruction regarding any payments to be made by the Council in accordance with the Council's Financial Regulations;
- xiv Record every planning application notified to the Council and the Council's response to the local planning authority electronically;
- xv Refer a planning application received by the Council to all members of the planning committee within 2 working days of receipt;
- xvi Manage access to information about the Council via the publication scheme.

15. Responsible Financial Officer

The Council shall appoint appropriate staff member(s) to undertake the work of the Responsible Financial Officer when the Responsible Financial Officer is absent

16. Accounts and accounting statements

- a "Proper practices" in standing orders refer to the most recent version of Governance and Accountability for Local Councils – a Practioners' Guide.
- b All payments by the Council shall be authorised, approved and paid in accordance with the law, proper practices and the Council's Financial Regulations.
- c The Responsible Financial Officer shall supply to each Councillor as soon as practicable after 30 June, 30 September and 31 December in each year a statement summarising:
 - i. the Council's receipts and payments (or income and expenditure) for each quarter;

- ii. the Council's aggregate receipts and payments (or income and expenditure) for the year to date;
- iii. the balances held at the end of a quarter being reported and which includes a comparison with the budget for the financial year and highlight any actual or potential overspends.
- d As soon as possible after the financial year end 31 March, the Responsible Financial Officer shall provide:
 - each Councillor with a statement summarising the Council's receipts and payments (or income and expenditure) for the last quarter and the year to date for information; and
 - to the full Council the accounting statements for the year in the form of Section 1 of the annual governance and accountability return, as required by proper practices, for consideration and approval.
- e The year-end accounting statements shall be prepared in accordance with proper practices and apply the form of accounts determined by the Council (receipts and payments or income and expenditure) for a year to 31 March. A completed draft annual governance and accountability return shall be presented to all Councillors at least 14 days prior to anticipated approval by the Council. The annual governance and accountability return of the Council, which is subject to external audit, including the annual governance statement, shall be presented to Council for consideration and formal approval before 30 June.

17. Financial controls and procurement

- a The Council shall consider and approve Financial Regulations drawn up by the Responsible Financial Officer, which shall include detailed arrangements in respect of the following:
 - i. the accounting records and systems of internal control;
 - ii. the assessment and management of financial risks faced by the Council;
 - iii. the work of the independent internal auditor in accordance with proper practices and the receipt of regular reports from the internal auditor, which shall be required at least annually;
 - iv. the inspection and copying by Councillors and local electors of the Council's accounts and/or orders for payments;
 - v. whether contracts with an estimated value below **£25,000** due to special circumstances are exempt from a tendering process or procurement exercise;
- b Financial Regulations shall be reviewed regularly and at least annually for fitness of purpose.
- A public contract regulated by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 with an estimated value in excess of £25,000 but not less than the relevant thresholds in Standing Order 18 (f) is subject to Regulations 109-114 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 which include a requirement on the Council to advertise the

contract opportunity on the Contracts Finder website regardless of what other

means it uses to advertise the opportunity.

- d Subject to additional requirements in the financial regulations of the Council, the tender process for contracts for the supply of goods, materials, services or the execution of works shall include, as a minimum, the following steps:
 - i. a specification for the goods, materials, services or the execution of works shall be drawn up;
 - an invitation to tender shall be drawn up to confirm (i) the Council's specification (ii) the time, date and address for the submission of tenders (iii) the date of the Council's written response to the tender and (iv) the prohibition on prospective contractors contacting councillors or staff to encourage or support their tender outside the prescribed process;
 - iii. the invitation to tender shall be advertised in a local newspaper and in any other manner that is appropriate;
 - iv. tenders are to be submitted in writing in a sealed marked envelope addressed to the Proper Officer;
 - v. tenders shall be opened by the Proper Officer in the presence of at least one Councillor after the deadline for submission of tenders has passed;
 - vi. tenders are to be reported to and considered by the appropriate meeting of the Council or a committee or sub-committee with delegated responsibility.
- e Neither the Council, nor a committee or a sub-committee with delegated responsibility for considering tenders, is bound to accept the lowest value tender.
- f A public contract regulated by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 with an estimated value in excess of £213,447 for a public service or supply contract or in excess of £ £5,336,997 for a public works contract (or other thresholds determined by the European Commission every two years and published in the Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU)) shall comply with the relevant procurement procedures and other requirements in the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 which include advertising the contract opportunity on the Contracts Finder website and in OJEU.
- g A public contract in connection with the supply of gas, heat, electricity, drinking water, transport services, or postal services to the public; or the provision of a port or airport; or the exploration for or extraction of gas, oil or solid fuel with an estimated value in excess of £ £426,955 for a supply, services or design contract; or in excess of £ £5,336,937 for a works contract; (or other thresholds determined by the European Commission every two years and published in OJEU) shall comply with the relevant procurement procedures and other requirements in the Utilities Contracts Regulations 2016.

18. Handling staff matters

a The handling of staff matters relating to the Parish Clerk is delegated by Council to the Staffing Committee to be managed according to the terms of reference agreed by Council.

- b The handling of staff matters for all other staff is delegated by the Council to the Parish Clerk in consultation with the Staffing Committee to be managed according to the terms of reference agreed by Council.
- c The management of grievances or disciplinary matters shall be according to the current policies on these matters approved by Council.

19. Responsibilities to provide information

See also Standing Order 21.

- a In accordance with freedom of information legislation, the Council shall publish information in accordance with its publication scheme and respond to requests for information held by the Council.
- b The **Council** will publish information in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Transparency Requirements) (England) Regulations 2015.

20. Responsibilities under Data Protection Legislation

- a The Proper Officer acts as the Data Compliance Officer for the purposes of administering the Council's Data Protection Policy.
- b The Council shall have policies and procedures in place to respond to an individual exercising statutory rights concerning his personal data.
- c The Council shall have a written policy in place for responding to and managing a personal data breach.
- d The Council shall keep a record of all personal data breaches comprising the facts relating to the personal data breach, its effects and the remedial action taken.
- e The Council shall ensure that information communicated in its privacy notice(s) is in an easily accessible and available form and kept up to date.
- f The Council shall maintain a written record of its processing activities.

21. Relations with the press/media

All requests from the press or other media for an oral or written statement or comment from the Council, its Councillors or staff shall be processed in accordance with the Council's policy in respect of dealing with the press and/or other media.

22. Execution and sealing of legal deeds

a A legal deed shall not be executed on behalf of the Council unless the same has been

authorised by a resolution.

In accordance with a resolution made under standing order 23 (a) any 2
 Councillors may sign, on behalf of the Council, any deed required by law and the
 Proper Officer or legal practitioner shall witness their signatures. The Proper
 Officer may also sign, on behalf of the Council, where the Council has made a
 resolution to this effect.

23. Communication with District Councillors

- An invitation to attend a meeting of the Council shall be sent, together with the agenda,
 to the Councillor(s) of the District and County Council representing the area of the
 Council.
- Unless the Council determines otherwise, a copy of each letter sent to the County or
 District Council shall be sent to the ward Councillor representing the area of the Council.

24. Restrictions on Councillor activities

Unless authorised by a resolution, no Councillor shall:

- i. inspect any land and/or premises which the Council has a right or duty to inspect; or
- ii. issue orders, instructions or directions.

25. Standing Orders generally

- a All or part of a Standing Order, except one that incorporates mandatory statutory or legal requirements **(in bold)** may be suspended by resolution in relation to the consideration of an item on the agenda for a meeting.
- A motion to permanently add to or vary or revoke one or more of the Council's Standing
 Orders not mandatory by law shall not be carried unless two-thirds of the Councillors at a
 meeting of the Council vote in favour of the same.
- c The Proper Officer shall provide a copy of the Council's Standing Orders to a Councillor as soon as possible.
- d The Chairman's decision as to the application of Standing Orders at meetings shall be final.



REPORT ON:Asset RegisterWRITTEN BY:Parish ClerkMEETING DATE:21st February 2023AGENDA ITEM:243/22

Introduction

An annual review of the asset register is required for audit purposes.

The revised asset register on the following pages is presented for approval and includes the following revisions:

- New server £2,400 added.
- Shredder £199.00 added to office equipment.
- Table trolley £249.81 added.
- 2 benches £1,351 added to street furniture
- Chamberlain Gardens fencing £956 added to play equipment, MUGA & trim trail.
- 4 new interment beds £2,621 added.
- Greening and Armed Forces flags £581.86 added.
- Defibrillator at Esso Garage £1 (funded by OCC)
- Event road closure signs £400 added.

			Odiham Parisl	h Council Term Investments			
Asset Description	Date Acquired	Purchase Value	Current Value	Location /Responsibility	Estimated Life	Usage/Capacity	Charges
1000 - General Account							
Parish Room		232,714.00	123,000.00				
Chapel of Rest (South)		232,714.00	282,000.00				
Chapel of Rest (North)		232,714.00	278,000.00				
Chapel Cottage & 2 sheds		279,258.00	490,000.00				
Var memorial, Gospel Green		1.00					
Office Equipment		5,280.00					
Seneral Contents		7,030.00					
he Bridewell	01.03.22	1.00	1,443,000.00				
x Gopak tables	02.03.22	684.66		Library room			
x Gopak tables	01.01.21	1.00		Library room			
ogitech Meetup camera	27.02.22	550.00		Library room			
iewsonic CDE6250 & mobile stand	27.02.22	1,350.00		Library room			
he Bridewell furniture & equip	01.03.22	1.00		The Bridewell (attached	h		
erver	29.11.22	2,400.00		Server room, Library Roo	0		
Sopak table trolley	17.01.23	249.81		Bridewell			
		994,948.47	2,616,000.00				
000 - Amenity Areas							
ublic toilets, King Street		1.00	123,000.00				
ports pavilion CG				Leased to Bowls Club			
diham Recreation Ground	20th May 1921	1.00					
W Rec Ground (Allotments)		1.00					
olt Hill Amenity Area		1.00					
he Firs Amenity Area		1.00					
and adjacent to Cemetery		1.00					
ufton Field Play Area	2013	1.00					
Chapel Pond Drive Play Area	2013	1.00					

Odiham Parish Council Fixed Assets and Long Term Investments

		Fixed A	ssets and Long	Term Investments				
Asset Description	Date Acquired	Purchase Value	Current Value	Location /Responsibility	Estimated Life	Usage/Capacity	Charges	
Street Furniture		43,319.00						
Play Equipment, MUGA & Trim Tr		197,956.00						
Tarmac paths to play areas, Re	17.11.20	4,880.00		Recreation Ground	15 years			
Defibrillator	30.03.21	1,390.00		Leapfrogs, Recreation Gr				
Lockable bollard	01.10.21	165.00		Cemetery				
Fruit trees	30.11.21	1,435.00		Community Orchard				
Interpretation boards	04.03.22	1,293.94		Community Orchard				
4 x new interment beds	06.02.23	2,621.00		Cemetery				
		253,067.94	123,000.00					
3000 - Community								
Defibilirator	2015	1,382.00		Co-op, High St				
Library stock	24.05.21	1.00	37,500.00	The Bridewell, Library Ro	1			
3 x noticeboards	01.01.21	2,070.87		2 High St, 1 NW verge				
Public access PC	25.02.22	735.00		Library room				
Book shelves	01.03.22	1.00		Library and ante room				
Flags	16.09.22	581.86		Bridewell				
Defibrillator	01.07.22	1.00	1,390.00	Esso Garage, Hook Road	:			
		4,772.73	38,890.00					
5000 - Traffic and Transport								
Speed Indicator Device (SID)	2015	3,290.00						
Broxap shackles	18.02.21	3,504.00		High Street parking bays				
Road closure signs	07.06.22	400.00		North Chapel				
		7,194.00						
Grand Total:		1,259,983.14	2,777,890.00					



REPORT ON:	Office printer
WRITTEN BY:	Parish Clerk
MEETING DATE:	21 st February 2023
AGENDA ITEM:	244/22

Introduction

The current contract with Ricoh for a basic A4 colour laser printer expires 31st March.

Existing Costs (estimated by Ricoh)	
Quarterly Rental	£32.00
Average 420 mono copies per quarter @ 1.37 pence	£5.75
Average 1500 colour copies per quarter @ 6.31 pence	£141.97
Average Total	<u>£179.72</u> x4 = £718.88
3 year contract	

Actual costs this financial year to date = $\pounds 656.74$

Proposed new A3 colour copier, with two paper trays and cabinetProposed Machine IMC3000AProposed CostsQuarterly RentalAverage 420 mono copies per quarter @ 0.25 penceAverage 1500 colour copies per quarter @ 2.17 pence£32.55Average Total4 year contract

£104.83 £1.05 £32.55 £138.43 x 4 = £553.72

Benefits: Estimated cost saving A3 printing of posters etc in house Ability to offer printing to community in the future if staff resources allow

Constraints:

Available space in the office which will require relocating one low level cabinet.

For Decision

To consider the Clerk's proposal to upgrade to the IMC3000A copier on a 4 year contract.



Let's celebrate the CORONATION OF KING CHARLES III on Sunday 7th May, 12-4

Street Party, Odiham High Street (tickets available on Saturday 1st April at 11.30am on Eventbrite. Look out for details soon)

Family picnic, Beacon Field (non-ticketed event)



Event organisers Odiham Parish Council https://odihamparishcouncil.gov.uk/

Odiham Parish Council